

City and County of Swansea

Notice of Meeting

You are invited to attend a Meeting of the

External Funding Panel

At: Committee Room 5 - Guildhall, Swansea

On: Wednesday, 3 October 2018

Time: 2.00 pm

Chair: Councillor Rob Stewart

Membership:

Councillors: M C Child, W Evans, R Francis-Davies, D H Hopkins, A S Lewis, C E Lloyd, J A Raynor, M Sherwood and M Thomas

Also Invited: J E Burtonshaw, E J King

Agenda

Page No.

1 Apologies for Absence. 2 **Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.** www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests 3 1 - 2 Minutes: To approve & sign the Minutes of the previous meeting(s) as a correct record. 4 Welsh Government Invest to Save Bid for Multi-disciplined 3 - 9 Integrated Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) Hub. Welsh Government Invest to Save Bid for Family Finding Project. 10 - 19 5 6 Integrated Care Fund: Dementia Funding 2018/19. 20 - 25 7 Proposed 3 Year Learning Programme - Glynn Vivian Art Gallery -26 - 32 Drafting the Future. 8 Exclusion of the Public. 33 - 36 9 Overview of Current and Forthcoming European and External 37 - 62 Funding Applications.

Next Meeting: Wednesday, 7 November 2018 at 2.00 pm

Huw Ears

Huw Evans Head of Democratic Services Thursday, 27 September 2018 Contact: Democratic Services - 01792 636923



Agenda Item 3

City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the External Funding Panel

Committee Room 5 - Guildhall, Swansea

Wednesday, 1 August 2018 at 2.00 pm

Present:	Councillor J A Raynor (Chair Pro Tem) presided until Minute No.
	60
	Councillor R C Stewart (Chair) Presided from Minute No. 60

Councillor(s) J E Burtonshaw A S Lewis

Cyngor Abertawe Swansea Council

> Councillor(s) M C Child J A Raynor

Councillor(s) E J King M Thomas

Officer(s)

Ben George Richard Horlock Clare James Chloe Lewis Paul Meller Lyndsay Thomas Debbie Smith Gaynor Winsor Samantha Woon Transport Strategy Officer Economic Development & External Funding Economic Development & Projects Officer Transportation Strategic Planning and Natural Environment Senior Lawyer Deputy Chief Legal Officer Accountant Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for Absence

Councillor(s): W Evans, R Francis-Davies and D H Hopkins and M Sherwood

58 Election of Chair Pro Tem.

Councillor J A Raynor was elected Chair Pro Tem.

Councillor J A Raynor (Chair Pro Tem) presided.

59 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea, the following interests were declared:

Councillor E J King declared a personal interest in Minute 61 'Active Travel Fund Bid 2018/19' as an employee of the DVLA.

Councillor R S Stewart declared a personal interest in Minute 61 'Active Travel Fund Bid 2018/19' as an employee of the DVLA.

Councillor R S Stewart (Chair) presided.

60 Minutes.

Resolved that the Minutes of the External Funding Panel held on 4 July 2018 be approved and signed as a correct record.

61 Active Travel Fund Bid 2018/19.

The Transport Strategy Officer presented a report which sought approval in respect of the funding application for the Active Travel Fund 2018/19.

He detailed the background, the bids submitted and details of the proposed scheme.

Members asked questions of the Officer who responded accordingly.

Resolved that the Active Travel Fund 2018/19 be approved.

62 Overview of Current and Forthcoming European and External Funding Applications.

Colleagues from the Economic Development and External Funding Team and Strategic Planning and Natural Environment provided an update on planned European and other External funding applications.

Members asked questions of the Officers who responded accordingly.

Resolved that:

- 1. the submission of business plans to secure funding from the WG Building for the Future programme to refurbish Kings Building, Orchard House and the former BHS building be **approved**.
- the submission of application forms to the WG Targeted Regeneration Investment (TRI) Programme to establish and lead the Property Enhancement Development Grant (PEDG) and Sustainable Living Grant (SLG) on behalf of the region be **approved**.
- 3. the submission of applications to Natural Resources Wales grant open-call to deliver the Gower Hedgerow Hub, Our Nature: Our Future, and Swansea Wildlife Volunteers projects be **approved**.
- 4. The panel supports Swansea Council adopting the lead role in the Primrose Park project and the submission of re-profile to secure funding from WREN to deliver the project.

The meeting ended at 2.34 pm

Chair

Agenda Item 4



Report of the Director of Social Services

External Funding Panel – 3 October 2018

Welsh Government Invest to Save Bid for Multidisciplined Integrated Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) Hub

Purpose:	To approve the funding application for the WG Invest to Save expression of interest for Integrated IAA Hub	
Policy Framework:	Social Services and Wellbeing Act Wales (2014)	
Consultation:	Access to Services, Finance, Legal and the Family Support Continuum Steering Group	
Recommendation(s):	It is recommended that the External Funding Panel approve the Integrated IAA Hub application	
Report Author:	Jane Whitmore and Gemma Whyley	
Finance Officer:	Chris Davies	
Legal Officer:	Debbie Smith	
Access to Services Officer:	Catherine Window	

1. Introduction

- 1.1. Welsh Government's Invest to Save Fund for 2018-19 bidding round opened in July 2018. Since 2009 the fund has supported projects across a number of areas including:
 - Procurement;
 - ICT;
 - Workforce;
 - Improving ways of working; and
 - Service delivery.

The Invest to Save Fund has allocated £174 million to over 180 projects since 2009 and the majority of Welsh public sector organisations have used the fund to support some of their initiatives.

- 1.2. This financial year the Fund has up to £5 million available to distribute to support the right projects which are ready for implementation. All projects will be considered however they are particularly interested this year in projects which have the potential to make an impact either regionally or nationally or which will improve the outcomes for looked after children
- 1.3. A funding bid for the Integrated IAA Hub was submitted to the Welsh Government Invest to Save as an expression of interest on the 30th July 2018 in accordance with guidance provided from the Welsh Government.
- 1.4. The bid asks for support in developing an Integrated Hub to manage Information, Advice and Assistance across the Continuum of Support in Swansea, to ensure families receive the right support at the right time.

2. Current Service and Key Issues

- 2.1. Our Information, Advice and Assistance Service (IA&A) is available to the public and also to other professionals and provides
 - **Information** We can provide information about universal, community and preventative support services to help people make informed choices about their well-being. You do not have to give the personal details of the child and family to get information.
 - Advice If children and families have particular needs we can start an assessment by having a 'What Matters' discussion to help families and/or professionals to think about how to improve their situation. We can help to explore options that may come from friends and family, professionals or any other early intervention and prevention services.
 - **Assistance** this is where a person takes action with a family to help them or to access support services for children, young people or families on their behalf. With parents/carers consent then I,A&A can make a referral directly to a service on the behalf of the family or arrange for a meeting so the appropriate support can be identified.
- 2.2. Phone lines are operated by qualified social workers who will listen to issues, get an understanding of the needs of our families and provide information, advice or assistance on who can help from social services, health, youth offending service, education, police, early intervention and prevention services and the third sector.
- 2.3. In addition to IAA, the local authority has other services, which act as 'front doors' for specific themes. They are listed below:
 - **Domestic Abuse Hub** receives referrals directly from the Police for issues relating to domestic abuse. This service has recently undergone a re-structure and is now effective in managing the right demand, which ensures children and families are having the right support at the right

time. This Hub does not currently take demand from the public but there is scope to broaden this in future.

- Under 11's Single Point of Entry receives referrals from professionals and families who do not meet the threshold for statutory intervention. This service allocates directly into our Team Around the Family (TAF) team and Family Wellbeing Team (FWT) in addition to other early help services for things like parenting support. A large number of referrals to this service are made from the IAA team.
- **Over 11's Evolve Service** receives referrals directly from schools and operates within the community to support children of secondary school age. This service also receive a large number of referrals from the IAA team.
- 2.4. These front door services manage allocation into their own teams and there are clear referral pathways in place to support staff to 'pass on' referrals but there is a lack of consistency in closing the loop on some of the more complex cases which may have a variety of needs. The inability to refer directly between teams (i.e. IAA cannot refer directly into TAF) and the inconsistency in tracking cases, which are passed between services, can often lead to drift resulting in cases escalating to statutory services.
- 2.5. This is further complicated by the different eligibility criteria and thresholds adopted by services. Whilst this is clearly identified and understood within specific services, there is a lack of understanding on a multi-agency perspective on what these eligibility criteria are across the whole system. A scatter-gun approach to referrals across different professionals can happen as a result of this.
- 2.6. The current systems in place are not effectively set-up to support staff in understanding 'what matters' to families. There are examples of when the identifying need presented at the point of referral differs to the underlying support that the family want and as a result needs are often unmet resulting in cases escalating into statutory services that could potentially have been avoided.
- 2.7. Recent performance information identified that IAA received a total of 12,675 call contacts in 17/18. These came from a number of different sources including police, health, families and schools. Of these calls, 4971 came to the team for information only, 3786 for advice,1175 for assistance which resulted in further contacts and 1165 were referred into statutory services.
- 2.8. On average families experience up to 40 contacts, 12 referrals and 3 passbacks/hand offs throughout their journey. It is also evident that an average of 12 professionals could be involved with a particular family yet, in some cases, they hadn't received an intervention that they wanted and/or needed.

- 2.9. A costing exercise determined that each contact or referral equated to an average of 30 minutes worth of professional time and each pass back equated to an average of 1 hours' worth of professional time. It was identified that on average the total time taken to support these particular cases was upwards of 29 hours and in some extreme cases this time reached 100 hours. The cost to the Local Authority to manage this is estimated at over £666 per case the total number of cases that experience this is approximately 2,340 per year costing a total of £1.5 million per annum to the local authority.
- 2.10. The proposal aims to filter this information so that the right demand is being worked with and understand need more effectively at the initial point of contact in an effort to allocate directly to the right service. The expectation is that this will have an impact on the number of contacts, referrals and professionals involved with these types of cases and could result in financial benefit across the local authority and other partners.

3. Proposal

- 3.1. The proposal is to resource, refocus and expand the current IAA team into a multi-disciplinary team of staff who will be co-located within an Integrated IAA Hub. The team will be better able to manage demand and the flow of information through the team until the point of allocation or assessment is expected to be far quicker and more effective.
- 3.2. It is anticipated that this will allow us to manage demand more effectively by ensuring the team only deal with appropriate calls, that family's needs are understood quickly and clearly and that cases are allocated to the right team to support in a timely manner.
- 3.3. By co-locating a team across the whole system, officers from multi-agencies will be able to clearly identify cases that meet eligibility criteria for certain services. The hub will allocate effectively through joint decision making based on need, eligibility and availability, ultimately reducing the number of pass backs across the system.
- 3.4. Ultimately, the new process of identifying what matters and allocating support based on need will provide families with a smoother journey through our services. Placing families at the centre of decision-making and exploring options together will help clarify what support is being offered any why. Through this change professionals across a number of agencies will work together to support families to live happy, healthy and safe lives with help from the right people at the right time, if and when they need it.
- 3.5. The reduction in system waste as a result of this pilot will contribute to the organisation financially. Based on the costs above we estimate that the cost of the flow in the new system would be approximately £234.23 per case, and applying this to our average number of cases annually of 2340 indicated that this would amount annually to £548,098. This would realise a cost saving of approximately 1 million annually.

4. Legislative Requirements

- 4.1. The IAA service is a requirement of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act and must, as a minimum, include the publication of information advice and assistance. The service currently operates in this way and provides information, advice and assistance on a range of topics related to accessing support for children and families and supports families and professionals to raise safeguarding concerns around the children in their care.
- 4.2. According to the Act, IAA must, 'promote early intervention and prevention to ensure that people of all ages can be better supported to achieve their personal outcomes, and explore options for meeting their care and support needs. It should be considered to be a preventative service in its own right through the provision of high quality and timely information, advice and assistance.' (SSWB Act part 2 section 5)
- 4.3. The proposal would support the IAA team to focus on preventing escalation through appropriate allocation to early intervention services. Understanding 'what matters' will promote early identification of need and support people to meet their wellbeing outcomes by offering support in a more timely way.
- 4.4. By placing families at the centre of decision-making, IAA will encourage the voice of the child to be heard and allow for a more joined up approach to exploring options and making decisions.
- 4.5. Additionally, the proposal meets the fundamental principles of the Act:
 - Voice and control Understanding 'what matters' as early as possible and using this as a basis for exploring options will ensure that families have control in their own support and that their voices are at the centre of any decision making.
 - **Prevention and early intervention** Working more closely together with colleagues across different agencies will allow easier allocation into early help services to ensure intervention is appropriate and timely so we can prevent needs escalating.
 - **Well-being** A child and/or families wellbeing outcomes and goals will be understood through the 'what matters' conversation and will be the driving force behind any intervention. These will continue to be a focus through the assessment and intervention a family receives and will involve consistent and frequent reviewing.
 - **Co-production** Decisions and intervention will be coproduced and directed by the family where it is appropriate to do so.

5. Equality and Engagement Implications

- 5.1. The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:
 - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act.

- Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
- Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
- 5.2. Our Equality Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due regard to the above.
- 5.3. We have completed an EIA Screening Form and will complete a full EIA report pending the success of the pilot and the invest to save bid which will inform service change. This will include engagements and consultation with service users.

6. Financial Implications

6.1. The total costs of the complete implementation of the programme over $3\frac{1}{2}$ years is £1,612,370 as outlined in the following table:

Item	Cost (including on-costs) for Total Project £	
Staffing	1,482,370	
Premises relocation and IT	80,000	
Consultancy and evaluation 30,000		
Project Management/finance/legal/HR 20,000		
TOTAL	1,612,370	

- 6.2. The local authority is seeking £806,185 from the Invest to Save programme which is 50% of the total cost of the development and implementation of a multi-disciplinary integrated information, advice and assistance hub.
- 6.3. The indicative drawn down of the funds, if successful, is outlined in the table below

	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22
TOTAL	£126,185	£350,000	£220,000	£110,000

6.4. Pending successful application to the WG Invest to Save funding a detailed budget profile will be submitted outlining when funds would be drawn down. This would be reviewed annually in line with our budget setting process and the MTFP.

- 6.5. The remaining 50% of costs would be met by re-aligning already existing resource mainly within Child and Family Service Budget lines and a smaller amount in Poverty & Prevention budget lines with the view to reviewing this annually as it is anticipated that if the offer is correct then demand will be reduced.
- 6.6. A continually annual cycle of review will be implemented to enable us to move resource around to meet need and make the model sustainable for the future to enable the investment to be re-paid.
- 6.7. This will help us to manage demand in a more effective, responsive way and meet budget saving targets as austerity continues. Ongoing annual review will inform decisions in terms of future commissioning and enable us to move resources around to meet need and make the model sustainable for the future. This will in turn, enable the investment to be re-paid within a 5 year period.
- 6.8. The repayment profile has been calculated based on when potential cash saving would be realised as implementation progresses over the next 5 years.

	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
	£	£	£	£
Revenue	80,000	220,000	250,000	256,185

6.9 We would only utilise Invest to Save funds if needed, this is the total amount we have sought, however this is pending WG approval.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 It will be necessary to ensure that all terms and conditions attached to WG Invest to Save grant funding are complied with and that the Council's Financial Procedure Rules Regarding Grant Applications and Acceptances are followed, if successful.

Background Papers:

Invest to Save Expression of Interest EIA form

Appendices: None

Agenda Item 5



Report of the Director of Social Services

External Funding Panel – 3 October 2018

Welsh Government Invest to Save Bid for Family Finding Project

Purpose:	To approve the funding application for the WG Invest to Save expression of interest for the Family Finding Project	
Policy Framework:	Social Services and Wellbeing Act Wales (2014) Signs of Safety Framework	
Consultation:	Access to Services, Finance, Legal and the Family Support Continuum Steering Group	
Recommendation(s):	It is recommended that the External Funding Panel approve the Family Finding Invest to Save application	
Report Author:	Donna Houlston	
Finance Officer:	Chris Davies	
Legal Officer:	Debbie Smith	
Access to Services Officer	: Rhian Millar	

1. Introduction

- 1.1. Welsh Government's Invest to Save Fund for 2018-19 bidding round opening in July 2018. Since 2009 the fund has supported projects across a number of areas including:
 - Procurement;
 - ICT;
 - Workforce;
 - Improving ways of working; and
 - Service delivery.

The Invest to Save Fund has allocated £174 million to over 180 projects since 2009 and the majority of Welsh public sector organisations have used the fund to support some of their initiatives.

- 1.2. This financial year the Fund has up to £5 million available to distribute to support the right projects which are ready for implementation. All projects will be considered however they are particularly interested this year in projects which have the potential to make an impact either regionally or nationally or which will improve the outcomes for looked after children
- 1.3. A funding bid for the Family Finding Project was submitted to the Welsh Government Invest to Save as an expression of interest on the 30th July 2018 in accordance with guidance provided from the Welsh Government.
- 1.4. The bid asks for support in developing an innovative team to drive the implementation of the 'Family Finding' model in Swansea to support the reduction in number of looked after children.

2. Current Service and Key Issues

- 2.1. Among the key strategic priorities for Child and Family Services (and Swansea Council more generally) are the Safe Looked After Children Reduction Strategy and the Sustainable Swansea programme. There are strong interdependencies between these initiatives and their prospects for success hinge on our capacity to support greater numbers of families to care for their own children, where safe and appropriate to do so.
- 2.2. In 2016/17 the financial costs for Child and Family Services (not including the costs for partners in Education, Health etc.) of supporting our looked after population was approximately £23,000,000 around 65% of the total Departmental budget. If we do not reduce the need for children to become looked after there is a risk we will not have sufficient resources to consistently and effectively meet the needs of those who have to come into or are already in our care.
- 2.3. One of the primary ways for taking forward the above strategies and improving our capacity to support families to care for their own children has been the development and implementation of the Signs Of Safety (SOS) approach to practice.
- 2.4. Over the last 5 years Child and Family Services has been able to evidence considerable progress in terms of delivering its strategic objectives i.e. improving outcomes, reducing the number of looked after children, and ensuring financial sustainability. However progress has stalled in the last 18 months as a consequence of increasing social and financial pressures:-
- 2.5. The total numbers of children who are looked after in Swansea have grown in the last year:

Date	LAC
31 st March 2017	481
30 th June 2017	492
30 th September 2017	478
31 st December 2017	502
31 st March 2018	522

- 2.6. Almost 200 children became looked after in Swansea last year. This is a high number to be able to ensure the right placement is always available at the right time. It is also a high number to ensure that we have sufficient resources to be financially sustainable.
- 2.7. Given the increasing numbers becoming looked after, the numbers of children looked after in high cost residential care placements has risen from 30 to 37.
- 2.8. To be financially sustainable, Child and Family Services needs to reduce the looked after population to 450 and the number in residential care needs to below 25 over the next 3 years.
- 2.9. It is important to acknowledge that this can only occur if our practice is strengthened. An essential component of the SOS practice framework is to identify and support a robust and committed family network. A recent review of the implementation of SOS in Swansea has recognised this to be the biggest gap in the successful delivery of the approach locally. As a result, it is thought that children are becoming looked after because we have failed to identify robust support networks and alternative informal family carers

3. Proposal

- 3.1. The proposal is to create an innovative team to drive the implementation of the 'Family Finding' model in Swansea. The team and senior managers will promote an integrated approach in order to enable the model to be embedded throughout the Department.
- 3.2. Family Finding is a set of strategies, tools, skills, values and beliefs created by Kevin Campbell. It is an evidence-based approach that is mandated by United States federal law. It has also been extensively implemented in a number of Canadian provinces.
- 3.3. Family Finding aims to ensure children's safety and wellbeing through strengthening family connections and support networks. The more a family is able to build support and resilience within their own network, the more effective and less time is needed of statutory services.

- 3.4. Family finding uses various search and engagement techniques to locate connections and stresses the importance of including family in decision-making. Family Finding engages with and enables families to have the responsibility for safety, permanence and wellbeing of the child .It is a model that helps create a strong foundation for collaborative family engagement and can be used across the continuum of child and family services involvement with a family.
- 3.5. The process identifies relatives and other supportive adults, including those who are currently estranged from or unknown to the child, especially those who are willing to become permanent connections for him/her. Upon completion of the process, children and young people have a range of commitments from non-paid adults who are able to provide permanency, sustainable relationships within a kinship system, and support in the transition to adulthood and beyond.
- 3.6. Keeping safety at the forefront and using a family-driven process, families are empowered to formulate highly realistic and sustainable plans to meet the long-term needs of children and young people.
- 3.7. Some of the outcomes that are expected to be achieved as a result of successful implementation of the Family Finding model include:
 - Reduced numbers of children becoming looked after.
 - Increased rates of reunification to family for children already looked after.
 - Improved well-being outcomes.
 - Improved placement stability (there are existing performance indicators for placement stability).
 - Quality transition out of the looked after system for care leavers.
 - A reduction in the number of children becoming looked after on more than one occasion.
 - Reduction in the number in high-cost residential care.
 - Stronger sense of belonging for children.
- 3.8. The model uses 6 steps which family finding workers assist children's social workers to implement. These are well-defined and tactical procedures and activities that are tracked with a fidelity tool. As an integrated approach the goal is to embed the principles, tools and strategies throughout practice in Swansea.
- 3.9. There has been 26 evaluations of the Family Finding model across America and Canada. Key finding of these evaluations include:-
 - Increased family contact and permanent connections.
 - Increased numbers of children adopted, re unified with family or placed with parent and returning home.
 - Developing functioning life time networks made up of relatives siblings and other important adults.

- Changes to general approaches to working with families
- 3.10. In Ontario, Canada, it was found that 91% of the 75 young people considered in a 2 year study are connected to at least one enduring non paid relationship of support expected to last a lifetime
- 3.11. Surveys regularly demonstrate considerable savings through achieving earlier permanence with families. Moreover, these level of results have been consistently replicated in the 26 Evaluations sites across America and Canada
- 3.12. The proposal will create savings by reducing the numbers of children who need to:-
 - enter care proceedings;
 - become looked after; and
 - be looked after in expensive independent foster and residential placements.
- 3.13. It will also help to reduce the average time children are looked after for.
- 3.14. For every placement with local authority foster carers that the project avoids then it will mean we avoid costs to the sum of £20,800 - £23,400 per annum. For every placement with an independent foster agency this figure is £49,400 per annum and for every residential placement it is £169,000 per annum.
- 3.15. Swansea has ambitious targets that are necessary for financial sustainability for the size of its looked after children population (450), dependency on independent foster placements (nor more than 25%) and residential care population (no more than 25). If these are realised then the level of spend on placements will reduce considerably.
- 3.16. A reduction in the LAC population by 25 children for each of the next three years (thereby achieving the target of 450), this would mean savings on the cost of placements of approximately £815,000 per annum (a total avoidance of £2.445m by the end of year 3). Please note that this is only the direct costs of providing accommodation and does not capture the myriad of other costs associated with looking after a child.
- 3.17. By increasing our capacity to divert children from entering independent foster and residential care placements then there would be further potential savings. For instance, if the population in residential care fell from 35 to 25 as we hope this would realise annual savings of around £1,690,000.

4. Legislative Requirements

4.1. The Family Finding model supports the principles and ethos of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act (Wales) 2014 in relation to voice and control,

co-production, early intervention and prevention and promoting wellbeing. Moreover, it is entirely aligned with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

4.2. The model compliments the Care Crisis Review which considered the factors which have led to the numbers of children in care being at their highest since the implementation of the Children Act in 1989. The Review recommends that: local authorities better draw upon support from family and friends; that local authorities better promote their duty to support families to promote children's upbringing with their families; that local authorities make arrangements to support families to make safe plans for children; and that improvements need to be made in exploring potential carers within the child's family.

5. Equality and Engagement Implications

- 5.1. The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:
 - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act.
 - Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
 - Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
- 5.2. Our Equality Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due regard to the above.
- 5.3. We have completed an EIA Screening Form and will complete a full EIA report pending the success of the pilot, which will include engagements and consultation with service users.

6. Financial Implications

6.1. The total costs of the project are \pounds 342,288 per annum equating to \pounds 1,026,864 over the course of 3 years as outlined in the following table:

Item	Cost (inc. on-costs)
	per annum
Family finding Boot Camp (x3) £15,000	£45,000
Family meeting workshops (x3) £9,000	£27,000
4 x Family Finding staff	£186,218
Family Finding Manager	£62,338
Young people's Family finding Boot Camp x3	£9,000
£3,000 per year	
Principal Social Worker involvement in policies,	£6,101
training, communications etc.	
Project management	£6,631

TOTAL (annual cost)	£342,288
---------------------	----------

- 6.2. The local authority is seeking funding from Invest to Save totalling £750,000 which is 73% of the total costs of the development and implementation of the Family Finding Model in Swansea.
- 6.3. The remaining costs will be resourced within current budgets as shown below:

	2018-19 £	2019-20 £	2020-21 £	2021-22 £	Total
Invest to Save Bid	£125,000	£250,000	£250,000	£125,000	£750,000
Local Authority contribution	£46,000	£92,000	£92,000	£46,000	£276,000

- 6.4. A continually annual cycle of review will be implemented to enable us to move resource around to meet need and make the model sustainable for the future to enable the investment to be re-paid.
- 6.5. This will help us to support children in a more responsive way and meet budget saving targets as austerity continues. Ongoing annual review will inform decisions in terms of future commissioning and enable us to move resources around to meet need and make the model sustainable for the future. This will in turn, enable the investment to be re-paid within a 4 year period.
- 6.6. The repayment profile of this funding is as follows:

	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
	£	£	£	£
Revenue	£100,000	£100,000	£250,000	£300,000

7. Legal Implications

7.1. It will be necessary to ensure that all terms and conditions attached to WG Invest to Save grant funding are complied with and that the Council's Financial Procedure Rules Regarding Grant Applications and Acceptances are followed, if successful.

Background Papers:

Invest to Save Expression of Interest

Appendices:

Appendix A - EIA Form

Equality Impact Assessment Screening Form – 2017/8 Appendix A

Please ensure that you refer to the Screening Form Guidance while completing this form. If you would like further guidance please contact the Access to
Services team (see guidance for details).
Section 1
Which service area and directorate are you from?
Service Area: Child and Family Services
Directorate: Social Services Directorate

Q1(a) WHAT ARE YOU SCREENING FOR RELEVANCE?

Service/	
Function	
\square	



ire Project

Strategy

	Plan

Pro	po	sal

(b) Please name and <u>describe</u> here:

This proposal follows an expression of interest for funding from Welsh Government to begin a project which will identify a potential new model of service delivery to support the reduction of looked after children.

The project will identify and implement a Family Finding Model of delivery in Swansea.

The proposal is for a new model of service delivery and as the project progresses a full EIA report will be completed to identify any specific impact it might have.

Q2(a) WHAT DC	DES Q1a F	RELATE T	0?		
Direct fron	t line	Indi	rect front line	Indirect b	back room
service de	livery	serv	vice delivery	service d	lelivery
\boxtimes	(H)		(M)	[□ (L)
(b) DO YOUR		IERS/CLI	ENTS ACCESS	THIS?	
Because they		ause they	Becau	1	On an internal
need to	Wa	ant to	automatically	/ provided to	basis
	-		everyone in S		i.e. Staff
(H)		(M)		(M)	(L)
Q3 WHAT IS	THE POT	ENTIAL IN	IPACT ON THE	FOLLOWI	NG
		High Impact	Medium Impac (M)	t Low Impac	t Don't know (H)
Children/young peop Older people (50+) Any other age group Disability Race (including refug Asylum seekers Gypsies & travellers Religion or (non-)bel Sex Sexual Orientation Gender reassignmer Welsh Language Poverty/social excluss Carers (inc. young ca Community cohesior Marriage & civil partr	gees) ief it sion arers)		Page 17		

Ec	juality Impact As	sessment Screer	ning Form – 2017	/8 Appendix A
Pregna	ncy and maternity	→ □ □		
Q4 Pleas	APPROACHES WI	ENT / CONSULTATION LL YOU UNDERTAK Solow – either of your	E?	
	reasons for not un	dertaking engagem	ent	-
Findin built ir	ng Model in Swansea Into the quarterly mor Ito any changes in se	id which will support . Engagement, cons itoring and review of ervice provision which	ultation and co-proc the project and will	duction will be inform a full EIA
Q5(a)	HOW VISIBLE IS T	HIS INITIATIVE TO	HE GENERAL PU	BLIC?
	High ∨isibility □(H)	Medium visibility	Low vis	sibility] (L)
(b)		ENTIAL RISK TO TH ing impacts – legal, fi		
	High risk	Medium risk	Low ris	
Q6	Will this initiative I Council service?	nave an impact (how	vever minor) on ar	ly other
[🗌 Yes 🛛 🛛	lo If yes, please	e provide details b	below
Q7	HOW DID YOU SC Please tick the relev			
MOST	「LY H and/or M ——>	HIGH PRIORITY	→ □ EIA to be Please go te	e completed o Section 2
MOST		OW PRIORITY /	Please go	omplete EIA o to Q8 y Section 2

Q8 If you determine that this initiative is not relevant for an EIA report, you must provide a full explanation here. Please ensure that you cover all of the relevant protected groups.

The screening is for an invest to save proposal to implement a Family Finding Model in Swansea. If successful, the project will seek to better understand the requirements of specific groups of service users to identify how the Model can support children and families in Swansea. This will be monitored regularly gaining insight from service providers, multiagency teams and service users over the next 12 months to inform a full EIA pending full implementation of the model.

Equality Impact Assessment Screening Form – 2017/8 Appendix A

Section 2

NB: Please email this completed form to the Access to Services Team for agreement before obtaining approval from your Head of Service. Head of Service approval is only required via email – no electronic signatures or paper copies are needed.

Screening completed by:
Name: Gemma Whyley
Job title: Project Manager
Date: 12th September 2018
Approval by Head of Service:
Name: Julie Thomas
Position: Head of Child and Family Services

Please return the completed form to <u>accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk</u>

Agenda Item 6



Report of the Director of Social Services

External Funding Panel – 3 October 2018

Integrated Care Fund: Dementia Funding 2018/19

Purpose:	To advise the Panel of the Integrated Care Fund (ICF) Revenue Funding for Dementia services and projects in line with the National Dementia Action Plan across Western Bay region for 2018/19
Policy Framework:	Social Service and Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014 Government of Wales Act 2006 Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2015
Consultation:	Access to Services, Finance, Legal.
Recommendation(s):	It is recommended that the Panel retrospectively approves the acceptance of the ICF funding for dementia services in Swansea.
Report Author:	Nicola Trotman
Finance Officer:	Chris Davies
Legal Officer:	Caritas Adere
Access to Services Officer	Rhian Miller

1. Introduction

1.1 The purpose of this paper is to provide an overview of the Integrated Care Fund (ICF) Revenue Funding for Dementia services and projects in line with the National Dementia Action Plan across Western Bay region for 2018/19

2. Integrated Care Fund for Dementia Schemes

- 2.1 In June, Welsh Government announced further ICF funding of £864,000 for 2018/19 for the Western Bay region specifically for dementia schemes that support the National Dementia Action Plan.
- 2.2 The letter from Welsh Government (WG) outlined an expectation that RPBs would take a fundamental look at the existing dementia services and care pathways in each area and develop services which addressed any gaps identified, in line with the plan.
- 2.3 The ICF guidance for Dementia funding states that the funding:
 - Should take into account the needs of the whole population, including those with protected characteristics;
 - must be used to support new or additional provision of services and ways of working must clearly demonstrate the additionality that will be delivered, with the impact evidenced in the quarterly returns required as part of the governance of the fund;
 - may be used to build on existing good practice and to increase the scale of provision of integrated services across Wales. It may also be used as pump-prime funding to assist transformation and change and to test out new models of delivery;
 - may be used to fund a range of projects, both small and large scale, to deliver the actions within the Dementia Action Plan;
 - can be used as revenue which supports capital funded projects e.g. staffing for new build provision.
- As with core ICF funding, monies will be allocated to health boards within regional partnerships, but spending decisions must be taken collaboratively by the wider regional partnership board. The Dementia funding was reported to RPB in July and the prioritised scheme were agreed through the Western Bay governance, ensuring formal approvals were sought in line with the ICF guidance. The Dementia investment plan, which includes all Western Bay schemes, is included in **appendix**The schemes were submitted to WG on 31st July and formal approval is expected by the end of September.
- 2.5 WG have confirmed that unlike the ICF revenue core funding, Dementia Action Plan funding is to be provided on an ongoing basis. Western Bay partners have however agreed to develop a strategic approach to Dementia Services and on that basis mapping work is underway to identify where the gaps are. The schemes submitted to WG were therefore only for 2018/19, given this piece of work has not yet been completed. Schemes for 19/20 onwards will be determined once the strategic approach is

agreed and any future funding decisions will go through the Western Bay Governance, which includes the Western Bay Dementia Board.

3. Equality and Engagement Implications

- 3.1 The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:
 - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act.
 - Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
 - Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
- 3.2 Our Equality Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due regard to the above.

4. Financial Implications

4.1 The total value of the Swansea schemes is £122,605, though this does not include the regional schemes. There is no match funding requirement.

5. Legal Implications

- 5.1 From April 2016, there was a requirement under Part 9 of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act for the establishment of a statutory Regional Partnership Board (RPB). A report requesting approval of the establishment of the RPB Board and its membership was approved by the 3 Local Authority Cabinets and the Health Board in July 2016. The Western Bay Regional Partnership Board leads on the planning and use of the funding, as well as ensuring delivery, to maximise outcomes for people and the effective and efficient use of resources.
- 5.2 WG ICF guidance states 'Regional partnership boards must put in place a Written Agreement to provide assurance that robust processes are in place to manage the effective delivery of ICF capital and revenue funds'. The written agreement has been completed and signed by the Chief Executive of ABMU and countersigned by the Finance Director and endorsed by Regional Partnership Board Chair. Addendum for the ICF Capital Funding to the original written agreement to be developed in conjunction with the finance and legal officers
- 5.3 The Authority has followed the terms and conditions laid out in the ICF revenue guidance and the ICF Dementia guidance.

Background Papers: None

Appendices:

Appendix 1 – Western Bay Dementia Investment Plan

			Total Cost Planned Expenditure 2017/2018								
Schei Numi	e Title of Scheme r	Description of Scheme (including extension to an existing service/contract and related additionality)	Link to relevant Action in the Dementia Action Plan	Project Lead	Total Cost (ICF Contribution Requested)	Quarter 1	Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Measurable Outcomes	Key Delivery Millestones
10	"Dementia Arts" - Developin Creative Arts Practices, Western Bay	opportuny) and valuable MBL Selection of classes to choose from. MODULE 3 Starting: [Denemical acts Start Farsing] rescalations: developed for staff and carers to explore and carry forward essential workshop skills and take joint ownership of the art initiative, too support their professions.	Those diagnosed with dementia and their cares and families are able to receive early person control care and support which is flexible	Amanda Fancourt	£6,000		2,000	2,000	2,000	Acceleration large a process- monitorio problem large anterpresent motivation problem large environment Association a developed a seriality pair with their Cock, France these checkels every kith (staging) and evaluate project, the branks. Leader Demonstration and guidance visual prototypes of each at project prices. Photographs. Leader Demonstration and Every Pair and Staging and Staging and Stages prices and Staging and Staging and Demonstration and guidance visual prototypes of each at project prices. Photographs.	6 MORTHE REGISTRY: 65 MORTHE / DOLLARS: 3 Juli Adaps per walk. Day One: Residents wankdwap November / Dollars: 30 - Group Classes schwards. Day Thes: Sall'Training Jamary / Fedara y 2018. Day Thes: Theating Interactive StoryAlling MERATE CONSTCUTIVELY FACH WEEK
20	Dementia Activities Co-ordinator Role pilot, Swansea	As acute and its avery attentive environment for patients with elements and can have a serve distributed affect on their presentation of them is a person- maging generation. The properties and the two hards have for the most the adjust of most distributed of detential. The properties and the to commonics application conditionates at word levels. 7 Joys a week as there are often not distributed on the experiment have properties and the to commonics application conditionates at word level. 7 Joys a week as there are often not distributed on the experiment have properties and the to commonics application conditionates at word level. 7 Joys a week as there are often not distributed on the experiment standard and engage patients. Practice relating techniques and modulines and creates integrates the approximation of the support services for automation and genesis and the most and distribute and creates integrates the provide the support to applications patients and the support services the support to a set of the patients. The relation the support to a set of the support services for applications and the support to support services for patients and the support to support services for applications are support to support to support services for patients and the support services for applications are support to support services for applications and patients and the support services for applications are support to support services for applications and patients and the support services for applications are support to support services for applications and patients and the support services and patients and the supp	Staff have the skills to help them identify poople with demonta and to feel confident and competent in supporting individuals needs post- diagnosis	Anna Harries	£25,000		8,333	8,333	0.334	Reduced need for 11 Requests to bank system/ Acuty data Reduced indidenty: JarkAggression/agitation Through Data reporting Reduced LOS Captured through Chical portal system Increased #F# statistication Captured weekly as ward practice	Age, Alvention vol appoint is to point are abled with 6 ill month fixed sense. Fundame explanation and reconcerse engrande of trading. Analor for start and and start of able of the common explanation of start data. Anal for start and and start approved. It is chosed sensition for appoint of available (continue service) opger recut opgermum service definery quicker.
30	Western Bay Dementia Trainin Frannevork, Western Bay	Adding on eaching work behind undertaken as pert of the Western Bay Community Services Programme to develop a Western Bay Regional Training Programme for Can Hows, Elsevice, a programme of training mobiles that respond to the specific element of Effect, Excellence and Degenerot, which the confident and compared to carring for and supporting those large with develop. The training programme for Can Hows, Elsevice, and Service	Starff have the skills to help them shertly population and the second start of the second start population and the second start of supporting individuals needs post-diagnosis.	Lynne Doyle	£30,000		3,000	16,000		Sale of a constraint of the set the diffs in the first in- set of the set of the and comparised in supporting instraints of the set of the Set of the difference in the supporting in the set of the s	31 Oct 38 - 30% of tail diversity and in Denestia Freedul correct denestia training mapped agents good work, 33 Oct 38 - software gragmane program and bage in this access to access. 30 April 13 - complete of how it thereas not use diversity digital case to balance.
40	Carers (of people living with Dementia) Worker, Swansea	The Is a new most place, differing a personalized, lengt pore of across for support, properlaine ye crears of someone leng with dements, focusing or enginger correr of events (approxed - style perceptions), shorts Activates 20, pore centre, differing expert, focusing or any and energing correr of events (21 kmost 21 kmost). The style perception of the style perc	The wider population understands the challinges faced by people twing with domentia Those diagnosed with domentia and their carers and Tamilies are able to receive and physical excited care and support which is iterable	Emma Daniets	£16,551		1,870	7,091		More carries an identified, given preventative of & supported and an energy of 200. by our of Auch 3.0 Market carries (1994), and an energy of 200 Market carries (1994), and an energy of 200 Market of carries (1994), and an energy of 200 Market of carries (1994), and and an energy of 200 Market of carries (1994), and and an energy of 200 Market of carries (1994), and and an energy of 200 Market of carries (1994), and the analysis of	Project Later – 15 z Aug 13 Merulaters – Aug 13 Project Aug 14 – 15 z Aug 13 Project Aug 14 – 15 z Aug 14 Project Aug 14 – 15 z Aug 14 Project Aug 14 – 15 z Aug 14 14 – Sopert Laters August – Schlar V 13 14 – Sopert Laters August – August – Schlar V 13 15 – Sopert Laters August – August – Schlar V 13 Hand 14 – 15 z Aug 14 – 15 z Aug 15 August Jan 14 – 15 z August Jan 14 August Jan 14 – 15 z August Jan 14 August Jan 14 – 15 z August Jan 14 August Jan 14 – 15 z August Jan 14 – 15 z August Jan 14 August Jan 14 – 15 z August Jan 14 – 15 z August Jan 14 August Jan 14 – 15 z August Jan 14 – 15 z August Jan 14 August Jan 14 – 15 z August Jan 14 – 15 z Aug 14 – 15 z August Jan 14 – 15 z A
50	Age Connects Neath Port Table - EngAGE Dementia, Neath Port Tablet	Working with Dennestia Friends and the Athenien's Society, this plot project will train staff and volunteers involved in our Community Outrach Oringer, Home Working Knows and Information Points (Houding Neath) Fort Table (Houding Neath) and the staff and volunteers involved and an assesses will also be deviced to any advectory of the staff and the staff out and the staff of the staff and volunteers involved in our Community Outrach Oringer, Home Table and ensures and provide of use of and Table Staff and Casting Service (and Linking Service) and the staff and and any Table and the staff out and the staff of the invariant length origin that and wellbeing A.s. detention is supported or guardation, we will continue to increase participation for people with lend experiment, conditioning is the development of fixed desentias supportive communities within the brough.	People are aware of the early signs of dementa; the importance of simely disposis; the importance of simely disposis; theor daynove with dimension and the their carry and families are able to receive early person centred care and support which is firstible	Dean Richards	£6,420			3,210	3,210	Deliver a denoted trajeting and severoses programme to 7 start and 15 solutioner. Start and 16 solutioner on denoted a severose and proved to 15 of the several severose and provide the several provide interpretation through direct cancer provide interpretation through direct cancer provide interpretation of the several provide interpretation of the several provide interpretation of the several provide interpretation of the several provide interpretation of the several provide interpretation of the several provide interpr	Matotase Transcalar Maparamo Co-reference January 2014 Targaman
60	Understanding Domenta/ Dati Domenta, Nudri Fuel Tablet	Construct Manady, March In Tangenth, Is a key community Jub In MP with Goas open sorter working. A small poly open in 3023 develop appointing a part of the oper Annah and Twath Vallys Is & Community Annah Communitias. The we reply is with March Integration and and open to appointing a part of the worker, with an of twath Vallys Is & Communitia Annah Communitias. The we reply is with March Integration and and open to appointing a part of the worker, with a context, to develop this further. We will not with same and training affecting develops and with a standary and their decel partner in develop memory and their appointer Finding System of the standard to provide address and were there are the community community develop the advector in partnership with The Athenen's Society and the Local Ana Coordinator. We will Base with Swanaa University, who are conducting essenth into Webh spakers and dementia.	These diagnosed with denoted a and their care and the limit are all due neckee and years of the limit of the support which is fixed by	Gil Webber	£25,720		4,868	10,526	10,326	Increased joined up working between community expensions, their durch and statutory partners an analysis to provide a pence centred on the community of the statutory of the statutory that an average beining that an average beining that an average to all the statutory of the statutory that an average to all the statutory. Socially Open and equal centers and their families/came can participate with dementia and their families/came can participate	August and a second secon
70	Bridgend Resilient Communities, Bridgend	The project will build on the existing work already understains via the "leaderst Communities" glan ceased in partnership with the CVC and Therd Sector Stankholder Groups to develop social prescribing opportunities in the community. The project will build on the learning and an ingrit developed with MAMmer's Social's to develop formation Tendrol bearings" and alread to based and calles is a range of strategies. This alreader based and calles a range of strategies and the strategies a	The wider population understands the challenges faced by people living with dementia.	Andrew Thomas	£30,000			15,000	15,000	Weller population to understand the challenges faced by people with dementia. Staff sub et adds is to be jainstift people with dementia and to feel confident and competent in supporting individual":relef post diagnosis. These diagnosed with dementia and their carers and families are able to receive early person centred care and support visit fealth.	August 2013 - Project Initiation / partombig metring September 2018 - Training and development plane (mrs to December 2018) Coldred 2013 - Printer and the Sector development plane facilities Manuellez 2013 - Autor 2015 - Perclipants revised / Initiate Good de community opportunities April 2019 - Quarter 4 molese
80	Integrated day service for people with complex needs, as result of living with dementa cognitus impairment, Bridgend	There is convert a review of day agortunities for other adults that in higher County Brough, pan of their rower has indicated that are noted to approach to the provide that the second to approximate the second term of the	Those diagnosed with dementia and their carers and families an able to receive pre-emptive accessment and reviewe prents careted care and support which is flexible	Carmel Donovan	£89,205		19,600.70	34,802.15	34,802.15	Receive will be able to leve at home longer improved diagnosis and timely interventions improved access to bother information: raised awareness, timely communication, accurate information, and effective prevention of escatation Carvers will feel besters supported and this will officies the need for higher levels of support.	August: + granes and of cars for multicologicany associatest and review day service for propele with complex needs. + granes and cars for the cars of the cars o

Page 23

9		C ba Jia Link Service, ei ridgend i A d	variation of a team of practitioners within the integrated Community Services to support informal carers and teal? In their ability to provide person-centered dottic care to provide persons of the integrated community services to support informations and teal? In their ability to provide persons centered persons and the integrated persons and an extension of the integrate and teal and	More people an disposed earlier, exciting them to plate for future and are able access early support and care if mented	Shaun Hough	£116,100	23,390	46,355	The Dementia Link Service to provide support to people with capable impairment/dementia in instructed community annices. The ICS all support people to access earlier drags do amentia 4.6.155 The ICS all support transprated Community Service and a service and the ICS and the ICS and the ICS and and the ICS and Service transprated Community Service and people the all to be of collection and the ICS and and the ICS and Service transprated Community Service and people impairment/dementia all for subject to the ICS and service transprate and an other on home and for connected to and added in their local community.	a COVINE to base themselve: 2 any per week in actin retrovit Commission of a comparison of a covine performance of a covine of covine of a covine of covine of covine of a covine of covine of a covine of covine
10	Primary Care B Demontia Supj Sw	٨	unter funding is new medied in order for the surveys to equal and successful in MBIIng the medie of a longer population such as Serverae. The application hardware for proceeding with the surveys of the surveys of the surveys of the survey o	More people are disponsed surface, enabling them to plan for future and are able access only support and care if method	Clive Thomas	£53,054		26,527	the importance of a training degradius, and known in the percentage of a training degradius, and known in the percentage of a degradius of and percentage of a degradius of an and an addie access development of a development of development of a development of development of a development of developmen	This is not a new project; however it has the potential to strengthen a prosen concept. The Community Deneetia Support Tiams throughout ABMU have being working towards the idual of a parton- cented pathway to Support and the protect as of the protect use of resources in order to do it. The tam is Searce has demonstrated its capacity to work TiaMay, is line with the Deneetist As a protect transmission of the tam is searce has the protect as a table protect use of resources in order to do it. The tam is Searce has the protect transmission of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect transmission of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect transmission of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect to the Deneetist As a searce has the protect to the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the protect of the Deneetist As a searce has the
1	Assessment - Service - E	A th er rlwydd Dementia t and Reablement Enhancement, wansea Ti	In both or and where the entring assessment and mathement factories within 'y waturshingh legitories' Can Hone. The additional on the advance of the advance of the advance of the advance of the advance requires staffing. The project will enable the service to set ad advance of the advancement and the advancement advancement of the advancement advancement of the advancement advancement advancement advancement advancement of the advancement advancement advancement and advancement advancement advancement advancement advancement advancement advancement advancement advancement the advancement had advancement advancemen	These diagnosed with densertia and their carers and familie are able to their are sport on control care and support which is fieldle	Cathy Murray	£90,290		45,145	No. of people returned home 45,145 Length of time in assassment service under 6 week Patizies feelback from service users who have ret home.	
1:	Health and Region	0	The calling General Access that for Stand and call or as gain of the regional intervendence are a transmitteneous of the second of the cardy of the regional access that the second of the cardy of the regional access that the second of the cardy of the regional access that the second of the cardy of the regional access that the second of the cardy of the second of the cardy of the second of t	People are aware of the early ages of description, the segmentation of a thirty degrading, and show where is get their degrading and show where is get their people and ages and are people and ages and are people and ages and are the second second are needed.	Andrea Preddy	268,706		34,353	 scouthte model: for delivering denset3 community basic annotation for delivering denset3 income. Exemption of defining model of an an exist include integrating harding basic and annotation of the second second second second second second responses of the second second second second second annotation or sequences and an annotation second responses and second second second second second second second second second second second second responses and second second second second second and second second second second second second responses and second second second second second responses and second second second second responses and second second second second second second second responses and second second second second second responses and second second second second second responses	nd kapat - October recruitment period Cotober - March penion is post
13	Dementia Frie and Sw	endly Communities	In other a prevention found project that are to ball more stronger communities for pargular hange with dennistic and that families to support pargle to any at home and bag and the community for all size parabilit. It will primarily focus in four key years – Coproduce a dennistical family action plan for Seamas Elementation for home: Develop information seasions for cares and family members to help them to oracle a dennistical family members in the term of the parability of the oracle a dennistical family development of the home in the phrase framework and parability of the stronger for cares and family members to help them to oracle a dennistical framely environment in the home in the phrase framework (seamaticons: working with schools to care awareness and develop intergenerational projects. Dennistical framely dennistics: Support halle, their and private succer services to be dennistical framely through the roll out of dennistical awareness sessions and parability approximation. Supporting themes: 1,2,3 1,2	The wider population understands the challinger faced by people long with dementia	Polly Gordon	£8,000	1,500	1,500	At least 50K of working group to be made up of people long with demotist, family weathers and Attracting of participants and be followed on the support of galaxies and the followed on the second support of galaxies and the followed on the second support of galaxies and the followed on the second family of an attraction signed on a second to format family of an attractions signed on a demonstra for people long with Demonstra	075 Working group instabilities - Contair 2018 Durb Contest Freider Systemic Action Micro Indured Concenter 2018 Dur Contest and design of activative action agrees Enhanzy 2019 Contest and design of activative actions (Freider 2019) Autoritation action granter for family 2019 Contairs contaired and agrees for family 2019
1/	Espansion awareness Sw	an of Dementia es and training. aiwansea	In all lagged near a series of an existing densers average and some programme to develop Good Wood Frankwood densers database for internal densers workstore, and protect. UNOVW adjust for location UNOVW adjust for location UNOVW adjust for location Densers and the series of the	Saff Jaw He alls, to lotg them storedy people and downstra and to final people and downstra and to final includes and engenetic in supporting includes in every people diagnosts	Jeanette Munn	\$20,000	1,500	8,250	The personal difference that this person has had inducted outcome of personal king with dimension that cannot be a set of the set of the set of the personal set of the set of the set of the set of the personal set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the dimension of the set of the set of the set of the dimension of the set of the set of the set of the dimension of the set of the set of the set of the dimension of the set of the set of the set of the dimension of the set of the set of the set of the dimension of the set of the set of the set of the set of the dimension of the set of the set of the set of the set of the dimension of the set of the set of the set of the set of the dimension of the set of the set of the set of the set of the dimension of the set of the dimension of the set of the	and September 2012 genomment September Annual Alle Sciences subsection interesting from the resident Annual

	18D	Making Connections in the Community, Neath Port Talbot	Specialized Training and Information—existions is suggered paople and minimum analoge the recording, cores, family, finedia, organization, care powders Specialized Training and Information—existions is suggered paople and minimum analoge that conditions, cores, family, finedia, organizations, care providers to Commonly Concernices - scores is commonly information (s.). Is and a flooping task, putting the bios out, prescription collections, trainoperation for sub-paperties. ¹ Difference in the store of the biol, including score in execution (s.). In the store of the manaloge Other community services for the biol, including score in execution (s.). The store of the	The wider population understands the Calalingus faced by people long with estimated	Anža Tomaczewski	£19,401		8,314	Martain Independence Increase a scialisation for the person Increased access for advice & information to 11.027 assport familiaciours Increased in purcher of dated and trained people for the social care workforce Reducing unnecessary hospital admissions Number of people with Demonstra dispussi, and	The project facion of most with the facion of Directors on a monthly bacis to monitor the progress, this will be accompanied with projects report and expenditure. The team defauming the project with will facion on a stronging cation plan. Species all controls and complements of the project, being Cartification to monthly start failure - 1 of the species. Project Lates - 1 theory per result. Project Lates - 1 theory per result. 2 a faggerit workers - 12 facin per week
	19D	Tea and Memories, Neath Port Talbot	page in the statistic and sight consisting workshop, third is exercise such as support from themesis can Darking with the statistical at the darks. The interpret of the statistical and statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical at the darks. The interpret of the dark statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical dark darks. The interpret of the dark statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and the darks darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and darks and darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and darks and darks and darks and darks and darks and the darks and darks and darks and the statistical darks and the statistical darks and darks and darks and darks and darks and darks and the darks and dar	Those diagnosed with dementia and their carers and families are able to receive early person centred care and support which is flexible	Polly Stone	£12,000	4,200	3,900	management 3,900 Number of people attending with new diagnosis Number of people signposted to other dementia services	The entertainment, utilities and infractments will amount to (200 per dance. This equation to (10,000 over 30 weeks, September 1x 2011 will March 31x 2019, Invided from 50 weeks as the project quantity enables and before or on March 31x 2019). This amount enganship is a 2020 will be additional (2,000 to be specific or and weeks) and a devertising. The for exact and or of equal and incomers within place of a 2019 will be ensured. We endeed we do to be additional (2,000 to be specific or and or of the date of the optimized or and the specific
	20D	Behavioural Support Service, Neath Port Talbot	The properties the speed transfers the enclosed in the block structure parts to be provided in the speed transfers. Support the the block provides the speed transfers the speed transfe	ive as well as possible for as long as possible with dementia in their own homes and provide a personalised service that is responsive to their needs (Dementia Action Plan, p. 19 & 22) in accordance with NICE guidance for dementia (2018) that stipulates non	Dr. Sarah Coller	£108,800	36,266.66	36,266.67	Aim to minimize care stress Aim for reduction in the host and gaychistric registroms carefully with domentia Aim to improve Carefully of Me for the person with Aim to improve caref skinekidge and all the careg for common with domentia The service and block for reduce the muniter of advictuois from how directly into mental health implation words	Appear 2015 Server straining from this balance' Nervestite Trainin in indicion to CAT and The Nervestite Training from Net Johnson and Allon Turner in the AMD Deventes training strain in indicion to MC. Server straining from Net Johnson and Allon Turner in the AMD Deventes training strain in indicion to MC. Server straining from Net Johnson and Allon Turner in the AMD Deventes training strain in indicion to MC. Server straining and the Server and Turner and the Server Se
	21D	The Helm Project, Bridgend and subsequently Western Bay	read links of policities read to polis in noise memory one pathway Helping memory memory have been been been been been been been be	 More papels are disponded earlier, excelling them to plan for future and are able access only support and care it exceed Those disponded with demonstra and the cares and distance and its of motion early ponto control care and opport which is flowbie. 	Sue Gwyn	661,595		30,797.50	There will be a 5% increase of service users moving a Gagooia with D week of strand. The service of the service of the service and demonstrate a 70% concurrence with the exclame based on the demonstrate stratement, as when the service Action Allance	02 - Reculment of talf-tal accordment apportunities. (2) - Defaury of co-production workship C4 - Defaury of dafaed memory associated pathway to be embedded in service re-design. Production of memory associated tool list for use by local practitioners
		Mapping of current Dementia services and Evaluation of	The proposal is to enable collaborative working with Seanasa University and al Domentia care stakeholder, lectualing service users and career, across Western Bay. Is imperative that current service provisional across all sectors within Western Bay is mapped to inform thruw direction and deathy gaps in service provision, disting distinctional on the home memory and across all sectors within Western Bay is mapped to inform thruw direction and deathy gaps in service provision. The process of continued function care of the control years from Western Bay is mapped to inform thruw direction and deathy gaps in service provision. The process of continued function care of control wester from Western Bay is mapped to the function of the control years from Western the Domentics and thrus when the mapped to all current McCPC functions is also advanced in the most of control greater than the function and the second to all care that a start and the second to all care that all current McCPC functions is also advanced in the most of current second to all control most in these areas and support the future direction of investment.	Research is supported to help us before understand the causes and analysement of demonstral, including families and carers, to be co-researchers	Elaine Tanner	£4,000		2,000	Document will be produced outfining current provision of dementia sarvices across Western Bay 2,000 2018/17 Evaluation of outcomes of Dementia Integrated Care Funding	The rewards subtant would be recruited in September (ance confirmation of funding is received) and the post would cover 3 academic year with support from Swanea University.
	25D		Neath Port Talbot. The team has already developed a person-centred pathway to diagnosing dementia by filling the gaps in the service usually faced by those	More people are diagnosed earlier, enabling them to plan for future and are able access early support and care if needed	Annette Davies	£73,158 £854.000	24,386	24,386	People are aware of the warry spin of dementio, the importance of a timely dispeticies, and from where to get help. More people are dispeticed scalarse, installing them to 2.4,388, plan for future and the active scalar scalarse pro- gram in a scalar scalar scalar scalar scalarse and care if needed. Those diagnosed with dementia and their carers and families are able to receive early perion centred care and support which is freshold.	Awaking noted miletones from project land.
L			Swarsea Schemes		IVIAL	£864,000 £122,605			1	۱ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ
			Western Bay Schemes							

Page 25

p1-----. Cilr Jones PB Chair / Leader of NPTCBC 27-Jul-18 ne Hamilton **MU Finance Directo** Tracey Myhil BMU Chief Executive

Agenda Item 7



Report of the Director of Place

External Funding Panel – 3 October 2018

Proposed 3 Year Learning Programme Glynn Vivian Art Gallery Drafting The Future

Purpose:	To seek approval to submit a proposal to the Esmee Fairbairn Collections Fund/Museums Association London for 100% grant aid for a 3 year part-time Learning Programme to bring the Gallery's 'hidden' Works on Paper collection to light by engaging with participants from low economic and deprived backgrounds in Swansea - entitled <i>Drafting the Future</i>					
Policy Framework:	Council Policy - Healthy City; Well- being of Future Generations Act & Corporate Priorities					
Consultation:	Legal, Finance, and Access to Services.					
Recommendation(s):	It is recommended that:					
, 01	anel notes the implications in this report and approves attract up to £80,200 additional funding, at no cost to the					
Report Author: Finance Officer: Legal Officer: Access to Services Officer	Jenni Spencer-Davies Aimee Dyer Caritas Adere Rhian Millar					

1.0 Background

- **1.1** Glynn Vivian Art Gallery recently completed a major redevelopment, and is now seeking to expand its work for our communities, by seeking external grant-aid where it incurs no cost for the Council.
- **1.2** Our collection of over 5000 works on paper is bustling with drawings and prints, some of which have never seen the light of day, and not for reasons of conservation. Featuring prominent contemporary and historic artists from Wales and the wider world, the collection is an important part of the history of the gallery and is at present underused and practically invisible to the public, save a few works which are appropriate to be exhibited each year.

2.0 Proposal

- 2.1 We want to breathe new life into the collection, using it to start a conversation about identity and place, through the narratives, context, materials, and techniques depicted in the works. Drawing out, and imparting the contained learning to a new generation of museum patrons, artists and citizens, with drawing and image making as our primary tool through which to investigate our collection and chosen themes.
- 2.2 We want this project to affect those to whom it can make the most difference. The project will target participants from low economic backgrounds, utilising partnerships with Pobl's Youth Housing Project the Foyer (the Gallery's closest neighbours for homeless young people), and through working closely with the Fusion funded "Cultural Community Coordinator" within the local authority to pin point existing groups that can benefit from participation in the activities we are planning. This project would also provide us with an opportunity to further explore the potential of a future partnership with Gwalia housing association owned by Pobl.
- 2.3 For over five hundred years, drawing has been the core practice underpinning artistic education. The reason drawing has remained central to art is its inherent flexibility as a visual language. As a mode of inquiry it is a critically important method of interrogating not just what we see in the world around us, but how we see it. We will be making our proposed project a timely enquiry into our own sense of identity in an ever changing global world.
- 2.4 Through this project we want to;
 - Enhance our understanding of the collection what are the stories that accompany the works on paper.
 - Explore public curation how would the general public choose works that are to be displayed, what is relevant to them and our times?
 - Experience through making exploring the means by which the works were created, through drawing at its core but subsequently through painting and printmaking
 - Provide a legacy for volunteers to assist in the delivery of tours and sessions for the public surrounding the works on paper collection, leaving a long lasting effect on the gallery and ensuring that the collection is visible for the future.

3.0 Equality and Engagement Implications

- 3.1 The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:
 - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act.
 - Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
 - Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.

- 3.2 Our Equality Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due regard to the above.
- 3.3 An EIA Screening Form has been completed in relation to the funding bid, it identified no Equalities issues in applying for the funding. If approved a separate EIA will be undertaken on the project itself.
- 3.4 The impact of this project will have a two-fold effect of improving awareness, understanding and visibility of our collection, while creating ownership, opportunities for training; accredited creative projects for disadvantaged people, and young people, inspired by the artists and artworks- that our works on paper collection features. This will improve the well-being and employment skills of our communities, especially for young people.

4.0 Financial Implications

- 4.1 Total project costs over 3 years from April 2019 (2019/20, 2020/2021 and 2021/22) ending in March 2022 will be £80,206.
- 4.2 There will be no additional costs for Swansea Council as the grant is 100% funded.

	Year 1 2019/20 £	Year 2 £	Year 3 £	Year 4 £	Year 5 £	Total £	On- going £
Total project cost:	26,735	26,735	26,735				
Capital	0	0	0				
Revenue	26,735	26,735	26,735				
Grant applied for:							
Capital	0	0					
Revenue	26,735	26,735	26,735				
Match Funding Internal	0	0	0				
Match Funding External	0	0	0				

Summary

5.0 Legal Implications

- 5.1 Any offer of grant funding is likely to contain terms and conditions which are binding on the Council and the Council will need to ensure that it complies with the same.
- 5.2 In addition the procurement of any goods and services utilising this grant must comply with the Council's Contract Procedure Rules and European procurement legislation as appropriate.

Background papers: EIA form **Appendices:** Appendix 1 - EFP1 Pre-Submission

The City & County of Swansea

EFP1 PRE-SUBMISSION - Notification of Funding Bid to External Funding Panel

THE EFP1 APPLIES TO HARD COPY AND ELECTRONIC SUBMISSIONS

1. Scheme background and details - this is to inform the External Funding Panel of the intention to apply for a new grant proposal -

a. Awarding Body	Esmee Fairbairn Collections Fund/ Museums Association London
b. Name and purpose of Scheme/Programme (attach proposal brief)	Esmee Fairbairn Collections Fund/Museums Association London
	The Esmée Fairbairn Collections Fund, run by the Museums Association, funds projects which develop collections to achieve social impact.
	The Fund started in 2011 and 90 projects have so far received grants totaling \pounds 6.7m in 14 funding rounds. Between 2017 and 2019 it is offering a total of \pounds 3.5m in grants, as well as providing events and resources for the whole sector.
	Our proposal to the Esmee Fairbairn Collections Fund/Museums Association London is for 100% grant aid for a 3 year part-time Learning Programme to bring the Gallery's 'hidden' Works on Paper collection to light by engaging with participants from low economic and deprived backgrounds in Swansea - entitled <i>Drafting the</i> <i>Future</i> .
c. Grant value in Total£	£80,206 over 3 years in total.
d. Grant period / timescale for delivery	1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022
e. CCS acting as Lead Body or Joint Sponsor? Name other Partners.	n/a
f. Detail links to existing schemes at Local, Regional or National level	This project links to the aims of the Museums Association in our role as an accredited museum registered with the UK government's Museums Libraries and Archives Council

g. Detail direct links to Council Policy, including, where appropriate, target areas	The project will directly promote Swansea's Well- being statement 2017/18 and Corporate Priorities 2018/22. Glynn Vivian is located in Castle Ward which is a key target area.
h. List key target and proposed performance measures	Work is completed on time and within budget. The completed scheme will result in improved community inclusion at the Glynn Vivian and will improve the well-being of a broad range of participants from low economic backgrounds, and especially young people who are disadvantaged. This will be monitored through our GLO system and surveys.
i. For WEFO schemes confirm that the scheme has been developed in conjunction with the European Unit - Yes /No (delete)	n/a
j. Does this grant require a continuation of funding by the Council after the grant period has expired? <i>This includes</i> <i>current or additional staff</i> <i>costs.</i> Yes / No	No
k. Does the application require match-funding? Yes/No if it does where is this coming from?	No
I. Will the project entail the employment of additional staff and on what basis?	Yes, the grant allows for a part-time project manager/artist educator for 2 days per week over the 3 year period. Ideally we have a present member of staff whose post could be extended, if HR regulations permit. Otherwise we will advertise the post on a fixed term basis, renewable annually.
M. Have you completed an EIA (Equality Impact Assessment) Screening Form (please attach)?	Yes
N. Is a full EIA report required?	No

2. Please complete the following financial information:

•

	Year 1 2019/20	Year 2	Year 3	Year4	Years	Total	Ongoing
	£	£	£	£	£	£	£
Capital	0	0	0				
Revenue	26,735	26,735	26,735				
Grant applied for:							
Capital	0	0					
Revenue	26,735	26,7351	26,735				
Match Funding Internal	0						
Match Funding External	0	0	0				

3. Please complete the following:

a. Does the funding meet the Council's priorities?	Yes. Healthy City, Well- being of Future Generations Act, Corporate priorities Safeguarding people from harm Improving education and skills Transforming our economy and infrastructure Tackling poverty
b. What are the expected outcomes and are they clear and achievable? (link to 1h)	The expected outcome is that the project is completed on time and within budget. The completed project will offer empowerment and improved experiences with accredited qualifications for young unemployed or homeless people, transforming their skills through creativity whilst making the gallery's works on paper collection accessible to our audiences and visitors to the Gallery. The project will also develop new volunteers and have a broad, positive social impact in deprived areas of the city.
c. Is there an exit plan? (link to 1j/l)	Yes. We will integrate targeted participants during and after the duration of the project. We will identify potential groups and individuals who will benefit most from their involvement, namely those facing economic hardship (unemployed, BAME people, Neets, people with disabilities and other socially excluded people). We will have offered them training in a variety of transferable skills, and this will help participants who have an interest in progressing further in the arts sector.

d. How is Value for Money being obtained? (procurement/third party arrangements etc)	The work will be formally procured and evaluated, in the same way as the Gallery does with all its funding.
e. What is the governance <i>I</i> management structure for the scheme? - What board/management team will it be reported to?	The management structure is already in place at the Gallery within Cultural Services.
f. What are the major risks and how will they be managed?	The major risk with this scheme is that work will not be completed on time or within budget. This will managed by the Project Manager and the Gallery team to ensure the risk is minimised.

4. Authorisation

	Name/ Signature	Date
Responsible Officer:		
(Group)/Accountant:		
External Funding Panel		
Endorsed /Not Endorsed		

Agenda Item 8



Report of the Chief Legal Officer

External Funding Panel – 3 October 2018

Exclusion Of The Public

Purpose:		To consider whether the Public should be excluded from the following items of business.
Policy	y Framework:	
Cons	ultation:	Legal.
Reco	mmendation(s): It is recommended that:
1) The public be exc following item(s) of likely disclosure of below of Schedule the Local Governi 2007 subject to th		e excluded from the meeting during consideration of the m(s) of business on the grounds that it / they involve(s) the sure of exempt information as set out in the Paragraphs listed nedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by overnment (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order t to the Public Interest Test (where appropriate) being applied. Relevant Paragraphs in Schedule 12A 14
Report Author:		Democratic Services
Finance Officer:		Not Applicable
Legal Officer:		Tracey Meredith – Chief Legal Officer (Monitoring Officer)

1. Introduction

- 1.1 Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007, allows a Principal Council to pass a resolution excluding the public from a meeting during an item of business.
- 1.2 Such a resolution is dependant on whether it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the public were present during that item there would be disclosure to them of exempt information, as defined in section 100I of the Local Government Act 1972.

2. Exclusion of the Public / Public Interest Test

- 2.1 In order to comply with the above mentioned legislation, Cabinet will be requested to exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the item(s) of business identified in the recommendation(s) to the report on the grounds that it / they involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information as set out in the Exclusion Paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.
- 2.2 Information which falls within paragraphs 12 to 15, 17 and 18 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended is exempt information if and so long as in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.
- 2.3 The specific Exclusion Paragraphs and the Public Interest Tests to be applied are listed in **Appendix A**.
- 2.4 Where paragraph 16 of the Schedule 12A applies there is no public interest test. Councillors are able to consider whether they wish to waive their legal privilege in the information, however, given that this may place the Council in a position of risk, it is not something that should be done as a matter of routine.

3. Financial Implications

3.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report.

4. Legal Implications

- 4.1 The legislative provisions are set out in the report.
- 4.2 Councillors must consider with regard to each item of business set out in paragraph 2 of this report the following matters:
- 4.2.1 Whether in relation to that item of business the information is capable of being exempt information, because it falls into one of the paragraphs set out in Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended and reproduced in Appendix A to this report.
- 4.2.2 If the information does fall within one or more of paragraphs 12 to 15, 17 and 18 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended, the public interest test as set out in paragraph 2.2 of this report.
- 4.2.3 If the information falls within paragraph 16 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 in considering whether to exclude the public members are not required to apply the public interest test but must consider whether they wish to waive their privilege in relation to that item for any reason.

Background Papers: None.

Appendices: Appendix A – Public Interest Test.

Public Interest Test

No.	Relevant Paragraphs in Schedule 12A
12	Information relating to a particular individual.
	The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 12 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that to make this information public would disclose personal data relating to an individual in contravention of the principles of the Data Protection Act. Because of this and since there did not appear to be an overwhelming public interest in requiring the disclosure of personal data they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.
13	Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
	The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 13 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that the individual involved was entitled to privacy and that there was no overriding public interest which required the disclosure of the individual's identity. On that basis they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.
14	Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).
	The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 14 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that:
	 a) Whilst they were mindful of the need to ensure the transparency and accountability of public authority for decisions taken by them in relation to the spending of public money, the right of a third party to the privacy of their financial / business affairs outweighed the need for that information to be made public; or
	b) Disclosure of the information would give an unfair advantage to tenderers for commercial contracts.
	This information is not affected by any other statutory provision which requires the information to be publicly registered.
	On that basis they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.

No.	Relevant Paragraphs in Schedule 12A		
15	Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority.		
	The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 15 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that whilst they are mindful of the need to ensure that transparency and accountability of public authority for decisions taken by them they were satisfied that in this case disclosure of the information would prejudice the discussion in relation to labour relations to the disadvantage of the authority and inhabitants of its area. On that basis they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.		
16	Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.		
	No public interest test.		
17	 Information which reveals that the authority proposes: (a) To give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or (b) To make an order or direction under any enactment. 		
	The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 17 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that the authority's statutory powers could be rendered ineffective or less effective were there to be advanced knowledge of its intention/the proper exercise of the Council's statutory power could be prejudiced by the public discussion or speculation on the matter to the detriment of the authority and the inhabitants of its area. On that basis they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.		
18	Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection		
	with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 18 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that the authority's statutory powers could be rendered ineffective or less effective were there to be advanced knowledge of its intention/the proper exercise of the Council's statutory power could be prejudiced by public discussion or speculation on the matter to the detriment of the authority and the inhabitants of its area. On that basis they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.		

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.